ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 6, 2009
3:20 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 167

"An Act relating to a corporation incone tax credit for
contributions by a person owning or operating a commercial
passenger vessel to a qualified trade association that was
awarded a contract by the Department of Commerce, Comunity, and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent, and used for planning and executing a
destination tourism marketing canpaign."”

- MOVED CSHB 167(L&C) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 177
"An Act relating to marine products and notorized recreational
products; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 177(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 185
"An Act relating to the |abor organization position of state
agencies and others with regard to construction contracts paid
for by state noney."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 167

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2009



SHORT TI TLE: TAX CREDI T FOR STATE TOURI SM PROGRAM
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

03/ 09/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 09/ 09 (H) L&C, FIN
04/ 06/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 177
SHORT TITLE: MAR NE & MOTORI ZED RECREATI ONAL PRODUCTS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

03/ 12/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 09 (H L&C

03/ 30/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 30/ 09 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 06/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 185

SHORT TI TLE: LABOR NEUTRALI TY FOR STATE CONTRACTS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

03/ 12/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 09 (H STA, L&C, FIN

03/ 12/ 09 (H STA REFERRAL REMOVED

03/ 27/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 27/ 09 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 06/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

KAREN LI DSTER, St af f

Representati ve John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of a joint prinme
sponsor of HB 167.

JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Manager

Anchorage O fice, Tax Division

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 167.

ROURKE BROWN

Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 167.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 6, 2009



JERRY SCHOLAND, Oper at or

Ki ana Bed and Breakf ast

Honer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 167.

BONNI E QUI LL, Executive Director

Mat anuska- Susi tna Convention & Visitor’'s Bureau ( MSCVB)
Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 167.

SHANNON HAMRI CK

Kenai Peni nsul a Touri sm Marketi ng Council (KPTM)

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 167.

DEB HI CHCOCK, President, and CEO

Fai r banks Convention & Visitor Bureau (FCVB)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 167.

SUZANNE RUST

RUSTS FLYI NG SERVI CE

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 167.

JULI E SAUPE, President

Anchor age Convention and Visitor Bureau

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 167.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f

Representati ve John Coghil

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 177, on behalf of a joint
pri me sponsor, Representative John Coghill.

CURTI S SPENCER
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 177.

DUDLEY BENESCH, Oaner

Al aska M ning and Diving Supply

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 177.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 6, 2009



WAYNE HULS, Co-owner

Marita Sea & Ski, Al aska Power Sports

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 177.

LARRY INNI'S, Director

Marine Retail ers Association of Anerica (MRAA)
Annapolis, Maryl and

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support HB 177.

RALPH SEEKI NS, Owner

Seeki ns Ford Mercury

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 177.

CLI NT KI RRY, Representative

Hewes Mari ne Conpany

Reno, Nevada

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 177.

DAVI D DI CKERSQON, Representative

Nati onal Marine Manufacturers Associ ation ( NVMVA)

Chi cago, Illinois

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 177.

DAVI D MCCORM CK
Bet hel , Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 177.

CRAI G COWPEAU, Vi ce President

Conpeau Mari ne

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 177.

PETER THOMPSON, Presi dent

Ri ver and Sea Marine

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 177.

MARK HORDEMANN
Sol dot na, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 177.

CLYDE (ED) SNI FFEN, JR , Senior Assistant Attorney General
Comrerci al / Fair Busi ness Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage)
Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2009



PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded comrents and answered questions
during the discussion of HB 177.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prinme sponsor of HB 185.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:20:19 PM

CHAIR KURT COLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:20 p.m Representatives Buch
Chenault, Neuman, and O son were present at the call to order.
Representatives Coghill, Holnmes, and Lynn arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 167- TAX CREDI T FOR STATE TOURI SM PROGRAM

3:20: 32 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 167, "An Act relating to a corporation incone tax
credit for contributions by a person owning or operating a
comercial passenger vessel to a qualified trade association
that was awarded a contract by the Departnent of Conmerce,
Communi ty, and Econom c Devel opnent, and used for planning and
executing a destination tourism marketing camnpaign.”

KAREN LIDSTER, Staff, Representative John Coghill, Alaska State
Legislature, introduced herself as staff to a joint prine
sponsor of HB 167.

3:21:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN nade a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 167, |abeled 26-LS0695\E,
Bul | ock, 4/1/09.[Version E was before the commttee.]

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for purposes of discussion.

MS. LIDSTER expl ained the changes. She stated that on page 2,
line 2, a new paragraph was added, as foll ows:

(3) not used to provide the person meking the contribution
with a direct or tangi ble benefit.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 6, 2009



MS. LIDSTER expl ai ned paragraph (3) was added to ensure that a
person nmeking a contribution would not receive a direct or
tangi ble benefit from the contribution and also receive an
income tax credit. She explained that the bill would establish
a tourism marketing tax credit to help create a sustainable
funding source for Alaska s tourism nmarketing program The bill
would allow a tax credit for contributions to a qualified trade
association that has been awarded a contract by the Departnent
of Commrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnment for planning and
executing a destination tourism marketing canpaign. The tax
credit would be equal to the value of the qualified
contributions and could be applied to a tax liability under the
Al aska Corporate Net |ncone Tax. The credit could not be used
to reduce corporate inconme tax below zero, and the tax credit
could not be carried forward or transferred. Additionally, the
definition of “commercial passenger vessel” is defined in AS
43.52.295. This bill was created when the |egislature asked the
tourism industry for ideas for funding sources for tourism
mar keti ng in Al aska.

3:23: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN referred to the sectional analysis for HB
167. He related his wunderstanding the bill would provide
comerci al passenger vessels a credit against the tax due for a
cash contribution to a marketing program He asked for further
clarification.

M5. LIDSTER explained the contribution would be nmade to a
qualified trade association that was awarded the tourism
mar ket i ng contract adm ni stered by the DCCED.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if a business such as a fictitious
“Karen's Whitewater Riverboat Extravaganza” nade a contribution
to the Alaska Tourism and Marketing Association if it would get
a credit.

MS. LIDSTER agreed it would be eligible for a tax credit so |ong
as the business fell under the definition in AS 43.52.295 with
respect to “commercial passenger vessel.” She explained that
the tax credit is limted to vessels with 250 berths or nore.

3:25:47 PM
M5. LIDSTER, in response to Representative Neunman, explained

that no limt has been established at this tine. In further

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 6, 2009



response to Representative Neuman, Ms. LIDSTER expl ained that
t he conpany could nmake a $10 million contribution so long as the
conpany’s incone tax did not fall bel ow zero.

3:27:44 PM

JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Mnager, Anchorage Ofice, Tax
Di vision, Departnment of Revenue (DOR), stated this particular

tax credit is limted to those <corporations that operate
commerci al passenger vessels of 250 berths or nore, which would
apply basically to cruise ships. Under the bill, the conpany
could reduce its tax liability to zero. She referred to

Representative Neuman’s earlier question and answered that a tax
credit would apply so long as the industry had a $10 mllion tax
liability, the conmpany could reduce its liability to zero. I n
further response to Representative Neuman, Ms. Bales stated the
conpanies could estimate the tax credit since paynents can be
made any time during the year. Thus, the conpany could take the
credit at the end of the year when the conpany would have a
better idea of the anount of corporate incone taxes owed.

3:32: 02 PM

M5. BALES, in response to Representative Buch, explained that
the fiscal note is for $30 thousand to cover a one time cost for
startup expenses to enhance the tax exam nation system produce
tax forns, and educate the stakehol ders. She explained that the
revenues are considered indetermnate since the departnent can
not estimate the anmount of the incone tax. She further
explained that currently the departnent only has one year of
data avail able and taxpayers that pay the corporate inconme tax

are also comercial passenger vessels. She offered that the
departnment previously “lunped” the corporation taxes together
with other tourism industry corporation taxes. In 2007, prior

to commerci al passenger vessels paying corporate inconme tax, the
departnment received $3.5 mllion from other corporations in the
tourism industry. She highlighted the amount collected
increased to $15.8 nillion. She pointed out that a large part
of the tax collected was due to Ilarge passenger vessels.
However, taxpayers were not allowed to disclose the exact
anount, she noted. Thus, the departnent indicated in its fisca
note that had the tax credit been in effect in 2008, the

potential could have resulted in a $15.8 mllion decrease in
revenue. In further response to Representative Buch, M. Bales
expl ai ned that the $30,000 is the specific cost of the inpact of
this bill. She explained that the one tine cost is to cover

contract costs for information technol ogy assi stance.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 6, 2009



3:34:44 PM

ROURK BROWN expl ained that he is a small business owner and a
vol unteer governnent relations chair for the Alaska Trave

I ndustry Association (ATIA). He stated that the tourism
industry is an inportant part of Alaska s econony. He provided
statistics such as that tourism brings $1.8 billion in new
dollars to Alaska s econony and provides the equivalent of

40,000 fulltime jobs, $70 mllion in local taxes and fees, and
$122 mllion in state taxes and fees. He referred to his
handout , titled “Tourism  Tax Credit Prem ere Travel

Destination”, and to page 4, titled “Tourism Marketing in
Al aska”. He explained that since 1999, the public sector

funding for tourism nmarketing has declined from $24 mllion to
$5 million in FY 08. During that tinme independent travel has
al so declined. The industry believed that the only effective

proven tool is destination marketing and a m ni nrum budget of $20
mllion is needed to effectively market Al aska as a destination
Last year the legislature reinvested the $9 mnmllion vehicle

rental tax it collected. The bill that inplenmented the vehicle
rental tax also allowed funds to be spent on tourism marketing.
He further stated that the private sector matched the $9 million
with an additional $2.7 mllion, which was the third highest
public/private match. Only Hawaii and California exceeded
Al aska, he nentioned. He said, “W are very grateful for this
first step that was taken last vyear.” Last vyear, the
| egislature placed a three-year sunset on the vehicle rental tax
bill, asking the industry to work to provide a long-term

sustainable solution to wuse visitor industry generated tax
dollars to fund tourism marketing. He related that the industry
has worked to find a solution which is enbodied in HB 167.

3:37:30 PM

MR. BROWN explained that HB 167 would allow the cruise lines to
make contributions directly to the state’s marketing program and
receive a tax «credit against their corporate inconme tax
liability. He related that the cruise industry pays corporate
incone tax as a result of a cruise ballot initiative. He
referred to page 5 of his handout, titled “Estimated State
Tourism Revenues” and to the $12,300,000 collected from the
Crui se Corporate Incone Tax. He clarified that this anmount does
not include the head tax, ganbling tax, or ocean ranger tax also

col | ect ed. He conpared the concept for cruise tax credits is
simlar to the concept of oil tax credits such that when the
industry drills nmore wells, it wll produce nore wells, which

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 6, 2009



will increase state revenues. He opined that this bill would
increase state revenues, which is also one of the travel
i ndustry’s goal s.

MR. BROMWN asked if travel marketing works. He then answered by
stating that in FY 05, the marketing program resulted in over
500, 000 responses for people interested in comng to Al aska. He
referred to page 3 of his handout, titled “Research Reveals:
Marketing = Visitors,” stating that the travel industry tracked
the results of visitors who traveled to Al aska. He provided
statistics on those who requested information in 2005. O those
requesting information in 2005, 14.7 percent traveled to Al aska
in 2006, 13.7 percent traveled to Alaska in 2006, 7.7 percent
traveled to Alaska in 2007, and 9 percent traveled to Alaska in
2008. He opined that 45.1 percent of the people who indicated
they were interested in 2005 in traveling to Al aska actually

traveled to Al aska. He explained that the average group size
was 2.6 persons, and the average spending per person was $971,
not counting any transportation costs to Al aska. He said,

“Tourism marketing is the only proven way to increase
visitation.”

3:39:32 PM

MR. BROMW referred to page 6 of his handout, titled *“Season is
in Jeopardy”, and stated the outlook is grim He opined that
booki ngs are down anywhere from 20 to 60 percent. He stated
that cruise prices are at historic lows, many small businesses
may not survive, and |ocal governnents will also have di m ni shed
bed tax revenue projections. He said that it is too late to
affect the 2009 travel season, but the industry could begin to
turn the tide in 2010 with passage of this bill. He wurged
menbers to pass HB 167 this session.

3:40:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH opined he would have a difficult tine
justifying the bill to his constituents. He related his
understanding that many industries such as commercial fishing

timber, and mning do not benefit fromsimlar state funding for
their industries.

MR. BROWN related that he appreciated the concern. However, he
nmentioned that the travel industry generates $122 million to the
state in taxes and fees, and contributes $70 nmillion to |ocal
gover nnment s. He highlighted that his community of Honer pays a
sales tax and a large part of the tax collected is derived from

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 6, 2009



nonresi dent tourists. He said, “I believe it’s fair to say that
this industry does support the state and all residents thereof.”

3:43: 40 PM

JERRY SCHOLAND, Operator, Kiana Bed and Breakfast, stated he and
his wife operate the Kiana Bed and Breakfast. He related that
he is also a nmenber of ATIA He highlighted that tourism
provi des about $122 mllion in state taxes. He indicated that
t hroughout the 1990s, nore noney was spent to nmarket Al aska than
in this decade. He opined that HB 167 seens to be a painless
way to take about 10 percent or less of the $122 mllion and
return it to the industry to market Al aska. He further opined
that tourism is truly a renewable resource. Tourists take
pictures out of the state and basically cone, spend noney, and
| eave. He stressed that Alaska is not |osing any resources by
funding tourism He enphasized that it will be a tough year for
tourism He projected a reduction in Alaska s tourism ranging
from 30 to 60 percent, which he related he has confirmed in his
own business. He urged nenbers to pass the bill.

3:45:58 PM
BONNI E QUI LL, Executive Director, Matanuska-Susitna Convention &

Visitor’s Bureau (MSCVB), stated that the MSCVB represents 300
tourism businesses in the Matanuska-Susitna valley, nost of

which are small businesses. She asked nenbers to support HB
167. She announced that she is pleased that ATIA has created
the proposal to make Alaska tourism narketing efforts

conpetitive. She opined that it is urgent to pass this bill to
provide the cruise lines that are paying taxes in Alaska an
opportunity to invest in the tourism marketing program She
urged nenbers to pass HB 167.

3:47:16 PM

SHANNON HAMRI CK, Kenai Peninsula Tourism Mrketing Counci

(KPTMC), stated that the Kenai-Peninsula Tourism Marketing
Council represents over 400 tourism businesses on the Kenai
Peni nsul a. She encouraged nenbers to nmove HB 167 from the
committee. She related that tourismis econonm c devel opnent for
Al aska and the Kenai Peninsul a. She stressed that the industry
is in crisis. She enphasized that ATIA is critical to the
efforts of the KPTMC for outreach to prospective visitors. She
opined that this bill 1is an excellent step to provide a
sust ai nabl e solution to nmarketing using dollars that the visitor
i ndustry generates. She concluded by stating that over 25

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- April 6, 2009



percent of all businesses |licensed in the Kenai area are tourism

based, and 30 percent of overall sales tax revenues are
generated by tourism businesses. She said, “This bill wll
support small businesses. Pl ease help them by passing HB 167
this year.”
3:48: 44 PM

DEB HI CHCOCK, President, and CEO Fairbanks Convention & Visitor
Bureau (FCVB), stated that she also serves as a volunteer on the
ATI A Board. She thanked nenbers who have supported HB 167. She
stated supporting funding for marketing for ATIA also assists
business owners in Fairbanks, the Interior and throughout
Al aska. She related that entrepreneurs are the hall nmarks of the

visitor industry. She also related |ocal business owners and
their enployees are Al askan neighbors, friends, and nenbers’
constituents. She offered her belief that tourism creates a

ripple effect through the communities, generating construction
transportation, and countless other services. She stressed that

tourism contributes to the quality of life in her community.
She related that the community has better airline schedules, a
beautiful airport, and nany attractions. She indicated that
tourism also provides about half of the operating cost of the
University of Alaska Fairbanks, Mseum of the North. She
highlighted that facilities like the Carlson Center benefit from
tourism doll ars. She also offered her belief that additional

mar keti ng funds could hel p Fairbanks develop its winter tourism
She opined that Fairbanks has concentrated its efforts on winter
tourism but cannot reach that goal solely by its own efforts.
She referred to a recent itinerary that was coordinated by the

ATIA for tour operators. She noted that tour operators from
countries such as Australia, Gernmany, Swtzerland, and the UK
visited multiple points throughout the state. She expl ai ned
that in Fairbanks, the operators were exposed to many locally
owned busi nesses. She listed a long list of businesses,
including Brewster’s Restaurant, the Punphouse Restaurant,
Aurora Borealis Lodge, and the Farthest North Harley Davidson
Qut post . She nentioned the tour operators also visited the

Arctic Crcle and Chena Hot Springs. She enphasized that HB 167
creates a sustainable funding nmechanism for ATIA marketing that
could benefit businesses in the sumrer and w nter. She opi ned
that this marketing reaches the depth and breadth of potential
custoners that is far beyond the reach of nopbst small businesses.
She urged nenbers to support HB 167.

3:52:29 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 6, 2009



SUZANNE RUST expl ained that her famly owns Rusts Flying Service
in Alaska and K2 Aviation in Tal keetna. She explained that she
al so volunteers on the ATIA board. She asked nenbers to support
HB 167. She stated that her famly’'s business has enployed
about 75 people in Anchorage and Tal keet na. She also stated
t hat her famly anticipates reducing its workforce by
approximately 20 to 30 percent this year. She hi ghlighted that
the reduction in wrk force affects grocery stores and
restaurants, creating a strong ripple effect in the |ocal
econonmi es. She stressed that the situation is real. She opined
that tourismis the economc engine in Alaska. She related that
somre of the mjor tour conpanies have cut their prograns in
half. She noted that there is a limted pool of visitors in the
uU. S. probably consisting of nore donmestic visitors than
i nternational visitors. She opined that Alaska will need to
conpete for its visitors from the overall pool. She stressed
the inportance of marketing dollars to Al aska. She stated that
tourism is a renewable resource that affects everyone. She
asked nmenber to support for HB 167.

3:55:19 PM

JULI E SAUPE, President, Anchorage Convention and Visitor Bureau,
of fered her appreciation as well as that of the 1,100 nenbers of
the ACVB for nenbers’ anticipated support of HB 167. She stated
by supporting the marketing funding for the ATIA that the state
will assist small and |arge businesses throughout the state.
She related that a healthy tourism industry is a key conponent
of Anchorage’s growth. She pointed out that tourism contributes
significantly to the state’s general fund and |ocal governnent.
She further related that the tourism industry makes nany
contributions that help create a robust and lively conmunity
that residents enjoy year round. She said, “Your support of
this legislation will expand this win-win cycle to everybody’'s
benefit.” She indicated she has observed first hand the nunber
of famlies that tourism supports. She enphasized that ACVB
relies on statew de nmarketing. She opined that by partnering
with ATIA ACVB can focus its energy on booking conventions and
groups. She related that booking neetings and conventions keeps
the econony vibrant during w nter nonths. She nentioned that
ATIA is a nodel of private/public partnership. She hi ghlighted
that she serves on the Board of Directors of the ATIA and on its
marketing commttee, so she can attest to the debates and the
efforts that are put forth +to ensure the program is
representative of the entire state. She commended the ATIA.
She further opined that it is time to take this nodel program

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 6, 2009



and provide a stable funding nmechani sm She asked nenbers to
support HB 167.

3:58: 05 PM
CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinmony on HB 167. He renoved his
obj ecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH expressed reticence to second guess the
voters who passed the cruise ship initiative. He inquired as to
whet her the sponsor has considered a sunset cl ause.

3:59:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he was open to that suggestion but
had not previously considered it. He related that a m ni num of
three seasons is needed for planning purposes. He recalled that
several tax credits are targeted for profit and nonprofit
industries, as well as for public/private partnerships in
tourism He related that due to the downturn in the econony
that this bill could help boost Al aska s econony. He projected
that the corporate tax will also dimnish and the |egislature
would likely need to revisit the matter very soon.

4:00: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH suggested that the sunset clause would need
to be a mnimm of five years. He made a notion to adopt
Conceptual Amendnent 1, to add a sunset date ending June 30,
2014.

CHAIR OLSON asked if there was any opposition to Conceptual
Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE  NEUMAN suggested the sponsor consider an
anmendnent to Conceptual Amendrment 1, and change the sunset date
from June 30, 2014 to January 1, 2015, to extend the date so the
| egislature could review the matter.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH of fered an amendnent to Conceptual Amendnent
1, to extend the sunset date to January 1, 2015.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL stated that he did not have any

objections to the anendnent. There being no objection, the
anendnent to Conceptual Anendnment 1 was adopt ed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- April 6, 2009



There being no objection to the Conceptual Anendnent 1,
Conceptual Amendnent 1, as anmended, was adopt ed.

4:01:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN offered his belief that tourism is
important to Al aska. He opined that the state can cover its
mandated costs such as for public safety and education for
several years. He recalled prior conmmttee work to consider
directing marketing funds to the ATIA or other organizations.
He acknowl edged that the nmarketing anmounts fluctuate, which
makes it difficult for the tourism organizations since they do
not have any certainty of funding from year to year. However,
he expressed concern with this bill since state funding is also
uncertain. However, he noted that he did not wish to stop the
bill. He opined the tourism industry will be ®“hit hard this
year.” He also offered his belief that it’s inportant for
Al askans to have jobs, too.

4:04: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noved to report HB [167], |abeled 26-

LSO695\E, Bullock, 4/1/09, as amended, out of committee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.

There being no objection, the CSHB 167(L&C) was reported from
t he House Labor and Comerce Standing Committee.

CHAI R OLSON announced that HB 167, Version E, as anended, wl|l
move on to the next commttee of referral, the House Finance
Commi ttee.
4: 04: 58 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from4:04 p.m to 4:07 p.m

HB 177- MARI NE & MOTORI ZED RECREATI ONAL PRODUCTS

4:07: 34 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 177, "An Act relating to marine products and
nmotori zed recreational products; and providing for an effective
date."

4:07:41 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 6, 2009



RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff, Representative John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, introduced herself.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN nmade a nmotion to adopt the comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 177 |abeled 26-LS0477\P, Bannister,
4/ 2/ 09[ Version P was before the commttee.]

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for purposes of discussion.
4:08: 16 PM

M5. MOSS expl ai ned that Version P represents three years of work
to inplenment consunmer protection provisions with respect to
marine products and notorized recreational products, including
four wheelers, three wheelers, and snowrachi nes. She revi ewed
the bill section-by-section. Section 1 anmends AS 45.25 to
elimnate all-terrain vehicles, recreational vehicles, and
snowrachines from the “lenon |aws” since those vehicles will be
addressed under new provisions in the bill.

4:10:56 PM

M5. MOSS referred to Section 2, titled “Chapter 27. Marine
Products and Mbdtorized Recreational Products” and related that
AS 45.27 states that a manufacturer cannot w thhold consent to a
sale or transfer of a dealership so long as the transferee neets
the criteria applied by the nmanufacturer and agrees to the terns
and conditions of the existing deal ership agreenent. Pr oposed
AS 45.27.020 would prevent a nmanufacturer from canceling or
declining renewal of a dealership agreenent unl ess the
manuf acturer has satisfied the notice requirenents and has good
cause to cancel or fail to renew an agreenent. She expl ai ned
that requirenents for noticing are included such as a 60-day
notice to the dealership, with sone exceptions such as a 15-day

requirenent if the authorized dealer engages in fraud. The
manuf acturer cannot decline to renew in the event of a death of
a partner/owner as long as the owner is not listed in the

agreenent as one whose expertise and abilities were the reason
for the agreenent.

M5. MOSS referred to page 3, to a definition for “good cause”

which includes infractions on nmaterial provisions. However,
material provisions may be a change that is not in the
agreenent . In those instances, the item would need to be

noticed to the dealership or owner in witing not less than six
months prior to the effective date of the cancellation.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- April 6, 2009



4:12:14 PM

M5. MOSS referred to page 3, of proposed AS 45.27.030, which
outlines the notice of cancellation or nonrenewal provisions.
She reviewed the requirenents include a 90 day notice provision
must be given to a dealer for violations, and a 15 day notice
must be given for bankruptcy, insolvency, or conviction of a
felony involving noral turpitude, fraud, or a violation of a
deal ershi p agreenent contractual agreenent.

M5. MOSS referred to page 4, of proposed AS 45.27, which
establishes that a nmanufacturer cannot coerce an authorized

dealer to enter into a dealership agreement wth wunfair
stipulations such as requirenents of dealers to overstock
i nventory. This proposed section creates a definition for

“manufacturer’s representative” that can include an enpl oyee or
an agent who engages in the business, including distributors.

4:13: 34 PM

M5. MOSS referred to proposed AS 45.27.050, which is simlar to
notor vehicle statutes, she stated. She opined that these
statutes help ensure a dealer is treated fairly. This provision
requires that a nmanufacturer mnust repurchase a two-year
inventory, including those products listed in the manufacturer’s
parts price books in the prior two years if the nanufacturer
cancels or fails to renew a contract w thout good cause. She
recalled that in the notor vehicle provisions either party can
cancel a dealership agreenent and the manufacturer would be
required to purchase the inventory. She related that the deal er
has 90 days to return the property for conpensation and the
manufacturer has 60 days to reinburse the dealership or the
financial institution that holds the security interest.

4:14:54 PM

M5. MOSS referred to page 5, to Article 2 titled “Article 2.
Product Warranties.” She explained that this article covers
what happens with respect to defects in products or parts. She
further explained that during a warranty period the dealer wll
be paid to repair defective products. She related that this
provi sion establishes a requirenent to provide a schedule for
rei nbursenent of defective products and the customary charges
for warranty work, which may be a printed flat rate, or it may
be a rate fee reviewed and agreed to by dealers and
manuf acturers. She referred to page 7 of proposed AS 45.27. 160,
which establishes a tinely reinbursenent of clains within 30

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- April 6, 2009



days. She noted that the manufacturer’s failure to pay the
claim or to provide notice is considered a default. However,
manuf acturers have 30 days to provide notice that nanufacturers
do not intend to pay the claim

4:16: 57 PM

M5. MOSS referred to page 7, to Article 3, titled “Article 3.
M scel | aneous Business Practices” which she related as the

consuner protection provisions. She explained that this
requires authorized dealers to post notices for retail |abor
rates, for notification that their technicians are factory
certified. This provision requires dealers to post notice for

custoners who are having work done that does not fall under
warranty provisions to provide witten estimates to include,
parts, labor, and costs, and any additional charges such as
di agnostic or storage charges. She related a scenario in which
a constituent took a car to a local shop for repair, discovered
the charges were nore than she could afford, and when she picked
up her car she was assessed a $100 diagnostic charge. Thi s
provision would require authorized dealers to post notices for
hi dden char ges. She referred to proposed AS 45.27.220, which
requires a manufacturer to provide the date when parts and
equi pnent will be available for factory recall notices.

4:18: 23 PM

IVS. MOSS referred to proposed AS 45.27.230, whi ch  she
characterized as the “lenmon law.” She stated that if a purchase
is under warranty, but the product is less than a year old and
at least one or tw problens arise, the mnufacturer nust
repl ace the product or refund the purchase price. First, if the
deal er cannot fix a serious defect, after attenpting to fix the
defect four times, or if the defect prevents the user from using
the product for 30 days or |onger. She highlighted this
provision in the bill is clearly a policy call. She related her
understanding that the notor vehicle lenon |aw would apply to
vehicles that have been taken into the shop three times for
repairs, with the vehicle in the shop for up to 30 days w thout
t he defective vehicle being repaired.

4:19: 32 PM

M5. MOSS referred to page 8, titled “Article 4, M scel | aneous
Provi sions.” She explained any provision in a dealership
agr eenent t hat violates this chapter is unenf or ceabl e.

Additionally, contract law and common |aw continue to apply.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 6, 2009



She referred to Article 6, titled “General Provisions” which

provides definitions including definitions for “authorized
dealers”, “dealership agreenents”, and “landed cost.” She
related that this legislation is naned the Al aska Marine Product
and Mtorized Recreational Product Act. She expl ai ned that

proposed AS 45.50.471(b) exenpts these products from existing
law, AS 47.67, wunder the trade practices sections of the
statutes. She highlighted that the bill applies to dealership
agreenents entered into after the effective date of the act.
The bill has an i mredi ate effective date.

4:20:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES stated that she greatly appreciates the
ti me sponsor has put into HB 177.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN poi nted out he previously worked on this
i ssue. He related his understanding that this bill would cover
marine and notorized recreational products such as ATVs simlar
to the autonobile consuner protection. He offered his belief
that the bill is to help Al askans. He highlighted that ATVs and
snowrachines are primary nodes of transportation for many
Al askans.

M5. MOSS brought up section she previously m ssed. She referred
to page 5, of proposed AS 45.27.110, with respect to defective
parts. She offered that |anguage was added to require the
manufacturers to deliver the part to the authorized dealer
nearest to the purchaser or to the dealer that sold the product

to the consuner. She described a scenario in which a consuner
purchases a snowmachine or ATV in Delta Junction, but lives in
Fai r banks. Thus, in the instances of defects, the nearest
deal er would be a dealer that the consuner had not purchased the
product from or had not conducted business wth. She rel ated
this bill provides an option for the consuner to select the
deal er. She recalled early dealers operating out of their

garages and conpared that to opening a new dealership with the
costs of inventory and specialized tools. She opined that this
bill could well be an exanple of cutting edge legislation for
this industry.

4:24: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL thanked Ms. Moss for her staff work. He
expl ained that he worked to strike a bal ance between the unique

needs of deal ers and consuners in Al aska, and nmanufacturers. He
said, “I think we’ve found what | would consider a clean pathway

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 6, 2009



for all three to have good rules to work by and still have it so
the manufacturers just don't rule the distributors or refuse to
get good service to the consuners, So it is consuner protection

in that regard.” He opined that the bill does not enter into
the contract agreenents but can assist dealers in working with
manuf acturers on issues. He further opined that the bill wll

assist all three groups.
4:26: 31 PM

CURTI S SPENCER stated he is a consumer who has had lots of
experiences with itens. He related an incident in which he
purchased a jet boat for $125,000. He stated that he had to
replace 18 fuel punps over four nonths, without any help from
t he manufacturer. He opined this is a bill that needs to be
passed. He highlighted that he has worked with dealers on ATVs
and snowrachi nes so he has experienced the agony dealers have

when assisting consuners. He recalled that one tine the dealer
pur chased his snowrachi ne since he could not fix it. He offered
his belief that this bill will be good for everyone, including

t he manuf acturer.
4:28: 41 PM

DUDLEY BENESCH, Owner, Alaska Mning and Diving Supply (AMS),
stated his business has been in operation for 33 years and
enpl oys 44 Al askans. He related that he has worked on this
issue for many years. He offered his belief that this is
legislation that is being enacted throughout the country. He
pointed out nunerous states such as Mntana, New York,
Loui siana, and Texas have all passed simlar legislation with
the same goal which is to create bal ance between manufacturers,

deal ers, and consuners. He opined HB 177 focuses on problens
that have been experienced in the industry. He indicated that
the bill wll help produce a nore reliable product for
consuners. He said, “Qur whole goal is to see warranty issues
go away or go down.” He offered that approximately 30 to 40
percent of his shop’s tine is spent fixing warranty issues and
safety recall issues that the manufacturers have created. He

said he did not know if it is due to rapidly changing technol ogy
and manufacturers can’'t keep up or if products are being rushed
to market w thout adequate testing.

4:31:02 PM

MR. BENESCH provided a sense of the expenses involved. He
related that on one occasion the dealership had an issue in

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 6, 2009



whi ch 300 snowrachine units affected by a drive shaft recall.
He appl auded the manufacturers for their efforts. He said, “But
the devil is in the details.” Due to availability issues his
deal ership had to order and pay in advance for 300 drive shafts
and kits wth seals and gaskets for a total cost of over
$60, 000. Additionally, his shop provided |abor for 20 percent
reduction in the allowable tinme from |ast year, and this year
the gap was higher. Furthernore, he was given 21 days to return
the defective drive shaft to the factory at his expense. He
pointed out that to return itens to the East Coast on that type
of timeframe required sending it by United Parcel Service (UPS)

or by US Post Ofice priority airmil. He related that his
busi ness has |ost over $3,000 returning their defective drive
shaft w thout any reinbursenent. He opined that the safety
recal | cost his dealership over $35,000 in |lost |[abor,

adm ni stration costs, and freight costs. He offered his belief
that the deal erships have been one sided wth manufacturers,
maki ng decisions on cost and paperwork issues. He said, “I
strongly support HB 177. | think it's a great, great
opportunity for this state to get sone consuner protection there
for busi nesses and consuners.”

4:34:17 PM

WAYNE HULS, Co-owner, Mrita Sea & Ski, Al aska Power Sports,
stated that he is a board nmenber of the Al aska Mrine Dealers
Associ ati on. He stated that he has battled with manufacturers
for over 18 years on behalf of consuners. He opined that the
one-sided warranty policies nake it difficult for dealers to
take care of their custoners. He related his experiences are
simlar to M. Benesch's experiences in ternms of costs incurred.
He highlighted that many custonmers have missed out on an entire

season of outdoor sports due to warranty issues. Furt hernore
many of these people are dependent upon their ATVs or outboard
motor for living and incone. He said, “I’ve seen nmanufacturers

grossly msmanage product recalls resulting in promses of
repl acenent parts, but continually pushing the ship date out for
the parts leaving the affected custonmer wthout use of the
product for extended periods of tine.”

4:36: 07 PM

MR. HULS offered his belief that his product really is custoner
service, but that he has been in a stranglehold by the
manuf acturers which has nmade it very difficult to provide good
service to Alaskans who want to enjoy the outdoors. He stated
that the manufacturers dictate |abor charges based on Lower 48

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 6, 2009



prices. Furthernore, the manufacturers discount parts, delay
the arrival of parts, and require the broken parts to be
returned to them which force the dealer to pay freight expenses.
He related his understanding that providing warranty service to

his customers costs Alaska’s small businesses. He opined that
the dealer either makes little profit, or |oses nobney to care
for custoners. He pointed out the uniqgueness of Anchorage,
Al aska as a hub for sales in Western Al aska and el sewhere. Many
smal | “bush” dealers nust perform warranty work on products the
busi ness did not even sell. He nentioned that he is a dealer

for a major brand and recognizes that many rural dealers “clean
up” problens that a manufacturer has caused, even though the
machi nes were purchased at his dealershinp. He offered his
belief that these dealers nust take a loss to accommodate the
custoner or the consunmer nust return the unit to him at great
expense. In short, the manufacturer sent defective products
that were purchased by consuners. Meanwhi |l e, the dealer nust
fix the problem that was the manufacturer’s problem but the
deal er is not breaking even. This bill is a consunmer protection
measure, and if passed all dealers, including rural dealers,
will be in a better situation to provide good customer service.
He said, “lI see this for all constituents will benefit if this
bill is passed. It will be a win-win situation and wll nake
the ground effort equal anongst the manufacturer, the dealer,
and the consuner. Thank you for the opportunity to express ny
opi ni ons.”

LARRY INNIS, Director, Marine Retailers Association of Anerica

(MRAA), stated that the MRAA strongly supports the bill. He
al so asked commttee nenbers to support HB 177. He expl ai ned
t hat MRAA is a national trade association representing
businesses in the retail side of recreational boating. He
offered that MRAA consists of 3,000 nenbers that sell and
service boats and operate marinas and retail stores. He
explained that since the early 1970s, the MRAA has worked to
protect investnments and pronote small businesses. He related
that boat dealers work hard to enhance the boating experience
and make it safe and enjoyable. During this tinme boating

consuners expect far better quality than they currently receive.
As a result of increased expectations, boat deal ers have worked
to inprove their relationships with manufacturers. Deal ers have
found that the informal practices of 30 to 40 years ago do not
work in today’'s environment. He said, “Consuners want and
expect nore. Dealers want nore safeguards to protect their
busi ness. Many of these safeguards can only be provided by
their product nanufacturers. Dealers would like to enhance
warranty paynment and clains procedures, and would Ilike nore

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 6, 2009



assurances on future business relationships to correspond wth
the increased financial conmtnent that many are required to
make in order to keep a certain product Iine. Addi tionally,
dealers want to build a business that has value to sell or
transfer. He opined that due to the frustrations with the
arcane agreenments and the wunwllingness of manufacturers to
revise or edit the agreenents, dealers have turned to the MRAA
for assistance. He recalled that MRAA pronoted a node

agreenent in 1966 that nore closely resenbled the business nodel

of the time and would have nade a fair and level playing field
between dealers and manufacturers to neet the expectations of
buyers and consuners.

4:41: 37 PM

MR INNIS related that after circulating the nodel agreenent the
manuf acturers did not comment. Once nore, changes were made and
copies were distributed but deal er agreenents did not change and
manufacturers did not express any wllingness to address the
changing climate. Eventually dealers began to turn to state
| egislatures for relief. He related his wunderstanding that
currently seven or eight states have dealer manufacturing |aws
in place and four additional states are working to adopt changes
this year. Presently the legislatures’ approach nore closely
addr esses t he mar ket pl ace t han agreenents by boat
manuf acturers. Thus, the market is thriving in states that have
passed simlar consuner protection. He related that |ong-term
agreenents provide dealers increased security and business
value, and nore inportantly, boating custonmers enjoy inproved
warranty service and enhanced boat buying experience. He
concluded by stating MRAA believes that HB 177 is a good bill
t hat addresses many of the issues expressed by deal ers including
fair and tinely paynent of warranty clainms, product buyback due
to manufacturer cancellations, long-term nultiyear contracts and
protection from unwarranted cancell ations. He thanked the
comm ttee and offered strong support for HB 177.

4:43:10 PM

RALPH SEEKINS, Owner, Seekins Ford Mercury, stated that he has
been a Ford dealer in Fairbanks for over 32 years and has been
in the auto business for 40 years. He further stated that he is
the primary author of the autonobile dealer franchise |aw as
well as the Al aska Mbtor Vehicle Warranties Act, or “Lenpn Law,”
prior to being a nenber of the Alaska State Legislature. He
noted that he worked with Ms. Mdss to review this bill. He
of fered several suggestions. First, he suggested that this bil

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 6, 2009



takes the custoner out of the nmiddle between the dealer and the
manuf act urers. He recalled simlar experiences in the
aut onobil e industry. At the tinme, car dealers were picking up
expenses for the manufacturers in an attenpt to keep custoners

happy with the products. He opined that the dealers had
adhesion contracts, which are basically “take it or leave it
contracts.” He offered his belief that virtually every state

has an Autonobil e Franchise |aw and sone version of a Lenon Law.
He opined that was the only way to require mnufacturers to
uphold their responsibilities.

4:45:11 PM

MR. SEEKINS referred to the applicability section of HB 177 and
related his understanding that this neans the bill would not
apply to current deal ership agreenents. Thus, a dealer could be
covered, but one down the street mght not be covered. He
highlighted that in the Autonobile Franchise Law, the |aw was
crafted to apply to franchi se contracts between the manufacturer
and deal ers. He appl auded nenbers for continuing to keep the
term snowrachi ne and not snownpbile, which he stated is truly an
Al askan term He recalled that several things were inportant to
t he autonobile deal ers. First, they wanted to ensure that the
franchi se agreenents apply to all dealers. Secondly, dealers
wanted the jurisdiction or venue to be within the state. Most
contracts required that disputes be adjudicated under the |aws
of the state of Mchigan, for exanple, with Ford Mdtor Conpany.
However, the |legislature changed the law so disputes were
adj udi cated in Al aska, nore specifically to the location of the

dealer’s principal place of Dbusiness. Additionally, the
aut onobil e | aw prohi bited manufacturers from formng a corporate
or subsidiary to acconplish what was prohibited by the bill. He

recalled that the manufacturers canme to the legislature to
attenpt to get the applicability changed to after the effective
dat e. He opined that would have left him 20 plus years out of
tine.

4:47:19 PM

MR. SEEKENS expl ained that some contracts may be renewable on
regul ar cycles such as a five year cycle. He further explained
that may be sonething the commttee m ght want to consider. He
said, “OQherwise, | look at this bill as pure consuner
protection. | know what it neant to ny consunmers to be able to
have the force of law to require manufacturers to be reasonable
about what they paid for repairs.” He opined that encourages
dealers to perform a quality repair since he/she does not |ose

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- April 6, 2009



noney in doing so. Additionally, he opined that nost reputable

manufacturers would prefer to have the quality service. He
encour aged passage of the bill on behalf of consumers across the
state.

4:48: 30 PM

CLI NT KIRRY, Representative, Hewes Marine Conpany, stated that
Hewes Marine Conpany has been creating high quality alum num
boats since 1944 and is currently the nunber one selling
al um num boat in Al aska. He expressed concern wth any
legislation that mght affect the risk of doing business in
Al aska. He related that Hewes Marine Conpany does not support
HB 177. In general, he offered his belief the bill is one-
sided, in that it protects marine deal ers against cancellation
by manufacturers, while Ileaving manufacturers at risk of
cancel lation by dealers. He related that even when a boat
manufacturer neets all requirenents for cancellation or non-
renewal the boat manufacturer would be required to buy back
| arge amounts of inventory. He opined that a deal er could under
perform in selling products and the manufacturer would still
have requirenents to buy back perfectly fine products. He
hi ghlighted that manufacturers work with each dealer on a case
by case basis and have deal er agreenents in place. He stressed
the inportance of the need for freedom to put together dealer
agr eenent s.

4:50: 23 PM

MR. KIRRY offered his belief that HB 177 nakes the playing field
uneven and protects the dealers at the risk of manufacturers.
He also expressed concern that warranty requirenents seek to
hol d the manufacturers responsible for warranty coverage that is
al ready being provided by the manufacturers is good faith to the
deal ers in Al aska. He opined that his conpany already conmts
to paying retail for labor costs, with respect to warranties.
Further, warranty policies between Hewes Marine Conpany and
deal ers have already been determined in witing. He related his
understanding that the proposed legislation is unnecessary. He
mai ntai ned that his conpany has had few recalls, and every claim
has been handled fairly and all parts and |abor are handled by
t he manufacturer. He pointed out his conpany realizes that
warranties are put in place for a reason.

MR. KIRRY stated when the manufacturer has placed a defect in

the product that manufacturers nust take care of that through
warranties. He enphasized that his conpany hopes to do business

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- April 6, 2009



in Alaska for a long time and sinmply do this wthin the
mar ket pl ace without this type of legislation. Additionally, the
i ssues brought forward seem to be ainmed at correcting a few
isolated incidents of bad practices by one or two nbtor sports
or marine manufacturers who do not handle their dealerships
relationships in the right way. He objected to having the bill
apply to all manufacturers since the industry has voluntarily
established practices that have nade doing business in Al aska
agreeable for a long tine. He concluded by stating the bill
seens to attenpt to rewite and supplant deal er/ manufacturer
agreenents and hinders the ability for manufacturers to enter
into business freely. He urged nenbers not to approve HB 177.

4:52:57 PM

DAVI D DI CKERSON, Representative, National Marine Manufacturers
Association (NVMA), stated that the NMVA represents about 1500

boat bui | ders, engi ne manuf act urers, and accessory
manuf act ur ers. He recalled earlier testinony today and had
several coments to make. First, the bill does not recognize
how cancellations by the dealer inpacts manufacturers. For
exanple, a cancellation at the end of a nodel year can |eave a
manufacturer with a trenendous anount inventory to store.
Secondly, he related that he visited Al aska and |earned nore
about the Al aska narket. In particular, a cancellation by the

dealer can be a crisis for the manufacturer due to the small
nunber of dealers in Alaska and the ability to retain a market
presence. He related his wunderstanding of the intent, but
opined that he is not sure the proposal provides bal ance. To
illustrate he indicated a nunmber of issues raised should not be
addressed in this bill such as proper replacenent of fuel punps,
the anobunt of noney expended for a drive shaft recall, and the
method by which recalls are handl ed. He agreed that recalls
must be handl ed appropriately. He referenced other |egislation
in the Lower 48, stating that M nnesota and |owa have chosen not
to take any action. And M chigan has not taken any action for
two full legislative terns. He acknow edged that contractual
obl i gati ons between manufacturers and dealers are respected in
the bill.

4:55:38 PM

MR. DI CKERSON questioned the need for the legislature to intrude
when so nuch weight is placed on the contracts. He asserted
that the contracts should be suprene and should oversee
rel ati onships between the nmanufacturers and their rmarine
deal ers. He recalled testinony suggesting consunmers wanted to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- April 6, 2009



nove to purchase their products other than the dealer closest to
their home since the consuner preferred the service or a better

deal . In fact, anything to encourages better service rather
than allow the consumer to leave the area for better service
creates a disservice to the consuner. Yet, that is what this
bill does rather than protecting dealers that perform well. He
recogni zed that testinony was given by what appears to be superb
deal ers. However, he offered his belief that the rea
protection this bill provides is to dealers who are not

providing the level of service that the testifiers strive to
gi ve.

4:57.:06 PM

MR. DICKERSON referred to the warranty reinbursenent. He
expl ai ned that marine reinbursenent provides “full reinbursenent
plus, plus.” A large nunber of the brands sold in Al aska
provide full warranty reinbursement. He offered his belief that
this bill is well intended, but it over regulates and m sses the
mar K. He said, “And overall, 1 think it is a real thunb on the
scale of conpetition and in the end wll not be good for
consuners because it wll protect those dealers that provide

poor service rather than provide any real benefit to those
deal ers who are at the top of their gane and doing the best they

can.” He concluded by asking Chair A son to not report out this
bill.

4:58: 03 PM

DAVID MCCORM CK stated that he has operated a mnmarine business
since 1999. He related that he has had the sanme manufacturer
for five years. He nentioned he has raised his famly in Bethe
and |oves the area. He pointed out that his custonmers cone
first. He stressed his experience that in the past five years

his manufacturer has been an anchor that has been sinking him
He opined that there has not been a year except for this year
that he has not had to take out | oans. In particular, he
pi npoi nted warranties as the reason. He offered his belief that
the unfair reinbursenent from the manufacturers makes it nearly

i npossible for himto do business. He said he is in business
since he loves his business, the state, and the people in
Bet hel . He said, “I'd like to continue what | do. | do it. I
do it well and | want to continue doing it. But, unfortunately,
how | ong can | keep on taking |oans out that keep nounting up to
hundreds of thousands of dollars and keep in business.” He
enphasi zed that this bill is long overdue. In particular, he

related that warranties have caused problens for dealers since

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- April 6, 2009



the 1970s. He related his wunderstanding that manufacturers
worry about paying too much for unwarranted repairs. Typically,
he finds warranty issues to be legitimte. He stressed
manufacturers are often aware of issues at the factory |Ievel

He explained that he sells 50 nmachines per year, cannot afford
to pay enployees due to insurance costs. Thus, he nust provide

warranty work hinself. He reiterated he would love to stay in
this business. He said, “I find this to be a very good bill.
just hope you guys can pass it. l’d love to stay in this. I
know ny custoners deserve a good product. The product should
come out of the factory wthout these defects that they are
coming here with.” He thanked nenbers for his opportunity to
testify.

5:02: 15 PM

CRAIG COWEAU, Vice President, Conpeau Marine, stated his
testimony would be brief. He said his testinmony is simlar to
that of other dealers who have testified. He provided an
incident in which one of the manufacturers had outboard notors
that could not be fixed. The manufacturers refused to
repurchase the outboard notors. After nmuch pleading, the

conprom se offered was to have the deal er renove the power pack
and serial nunber tag from the notor for a $2 thousand credit.
He stated that the conpany paid $7 thousand per notor, which
total ed over $100, 000. More inportantly, the outboard notors
potentially could have affected his custonmer’s safety. And to
maintain credibility with his custoners, M. Conpeau further
stated that he had to purchase back the notors from many of his
cust onmers. He inplied this is not an isolated case, but one
that is repeated. He said, “We think HB 177 truly benefits
Al aska’s consuners, who are the ones behind the steering whee
of that boat, behind the four-wheeler, you know, who are really
operating this product that 1isn't just a toy. W really
appreciate the opportunity to do testinony here and | thank the
commttee for their tinme and service.”

5:04: 09 PM

PETER THOWPSON, President, River and Sea Marine, stated his deep
appreciation for the opportunity to speak in support of HB 177

He related that the uniqueness of Alaska also poses nmany
chal I enges including transportation. He offered his belief that
HB 177 provides many safeguards for custoners and consuners who
use the products as daily tools. He opined that deal ers invest
| arge suns and pay Al askan workers. He further opined that
busi nesses have a ripple affect including transportation and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- April 6, 2009



avi ati on. Deal ers can only satisfy custoners if manufacturers
initially produce a good product. He enphasi zed that dealers
expend thousands of dollars to train wwth the new technology in
order to be able to provide warranty service. If the dealer
does not invest in adequate training, it could result in a
breach of the manufacturer’s contract. He related that
consuners are often deprived of the use of products for weeks or
months while the dealer attenpts to renedy the situation. He
sai d:

This is not in any way, shape, or form an acceptable
scenari o. W need to conme into line with many Lower
48 states [that] have already passed legislation
designed to mtigate this totally untenable situation
and rectify to the fullest extent possible the need to

have a cohesive support line from manufacturer to end
user and to endeavor to have these past inequities
m ni m zed. To all the parties involved, and

ultimately to better serve the needs of the custoners
in this state, to ultimately the future devel opnent
and success of the state rests. In closing, I'd like
to address the concerns of M. David Dickerson, NMVA,
and M. dint Kirry, from Hewes Craft, that if this
bill is enacted it is not intended to polarize or
antagoni ze any parties, but is in fact a chance to
form a new and fair and beneficial chance for all
parties to start afresh.

5:08:37 PM

MARK HORDEMANN stated that his snowrachine cane in during
Cctober, but the machine had a recall due to the gas tank. He
waited several weeks for the renedy and picked wup his
snownachi ne. Part way through the season the drive shaft
snapped. He said:

| was told, yes, they are having a problem with it.
This was a new and inproved drive shaft, in which fact
it was nothing nore than the sanme exact drive shaft

that they’d put in from the nanufacturer. The drive
shaft was put in and this year | received a recall
notice once again to have the sane drive shaft
replaced with a new and upgraded drive shaft. Al
this time put out basically was around three nonths of
not being able to use ny snowrachine. This is the

type of thing |I would |ike protection from And |

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 28- April 6, 2009



support the bill and thank you very nuch for |istening
to me.

5:10: 03 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wished to
testify, closed public testimony on HB 177. He renoved his
objection [Version P was before the conmttee].

5:10: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if M. Sniffen had any overall
t houghts on the proposed comm ttee substitute.

5:10: 47 PM

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR, Senior Assistant Attorney General,
Commercial/Fair Business Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage),
Department of Law (DOL), stated that he has reviewed the bill.
He related that he does not have too many comments. He further
related he noticed that the Lenon Law section is a fairly short
and stream ined process conpared to the notor vehicle |aw. He
pointed out that the notor vehicle statutes consist of three
pages and include details such as for noticing, and under what
circunstances a replacenent is not authorized. He offered to
di scuss the details with the sponsor prior to the next conmttee
hearing. Oherwi se, he offered that the DOL has no other issues
with the bill.

5:12:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH conmmented he first reviewed the bill several
years ago and had reservations, particularly wth sone
provi si ons t hat wer e very restrictive regar di ng
manuf act urer/ deal ership requirenents. He recognized the major
nodi fications made to the bill and suggested it may need sone
m nor tweaking as nentioned by the assistant attorney general.
Thus, he has chosen to cosponsor the bill and endorses HB 177.
5:12:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN offered that he worked on this issue
several years ago in order to protect Al askans, not only wth
respect to costs, but for the safety aspects. He stated that he
wanted to ensure that Al askans have good equi pnent since their
lives are at stake. He recalled the testinony from the Bethel
busi nessman who cannot afford the warranty problens. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 29- April 6, 2009



stressed when businesses nust pay for extra equipnment and parts
that the additional business costs reduce profits to the point
the dealer will sinply go out of business. He thanked the
sponsor and his staff for their hard work. He opined that HB
177 is a good consuner protection bill.

5:13:54 PM

M5. MOSS asked to point out that the only repurchase the bill
requires is when a manufacturer terminates or fails to renew a

contract w thout good cause. She said, “Very straightforward.
| have before ne a dealership agreenment that does not even
address warranty work and defects. She asked to read two

sent ences. She said she would not nanme the conpany. She read,
“This conpany has the absolute right in its sole discretion to
termnate this agreenment on witten notice of ten days prior to
the effective date of term nation.

M5. MOSS stated under repurchases, it reads, “Upon termnation
or nonrenewal of this agreenent the conpany has no obligation
but shall have first option to repurchase any inventory.” Thus,
t hese deal ership agreenents do not provide nuch protection for a
deal er.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL comented that he wll work on the
repl acenent issue with respect to the Lenon Law. He offered to
work to tighten up the | anguage. He stated that he does not
want to slow down the bill.

5:15:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noved to report Version P, |abeled 26-
LS0477\ P, Bannister, 4/2/09, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal note. There being
no objection, the CSHB 177(L& ) was reported from the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

5:15:59 PM

The conmmittee took an at-ease from5:15 p.m to 5:18 p.m

5:18: 02 PM

HB 185- LABOR NEUTRALI TY FOR STATE CONTRACTS

5:18: 04 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 30- April 6, 2009



CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 185, "An Act relating to the |abor organization
position of state agencies and others wth regard to
construction contracts paid for by state noney."

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as

prime sponsor of HB 185, stated that the bill pronotes open
construction and is also called the “Covernnment Neutrality and
Contracting Act.” He related that Alaska s construction force
consists of about 70 to 75 percent non-union and about 25 to 30
percent union. This bill wuld pronote and ensure open
conpetition on state construction projects while maintaining
government neutrality toward construction contractor | abor

rel ati ons, he further stated.
5:19: 15 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY offered that the intent of HB 185 is to

reduce construction costs, expand job opportunities, and prevent
unfair discrimnation based on labor affiliation or non-

affiliation. This bill supports awarding construction work
based on the nerit of the bid or proposal through open
conpetition wthout favoritism to any special interest. The
bill forbids the state from requiring union only project |abor

agreenments (PLA), while at the sane tinme providing that nothing
in its terns prohibit any contractor or subcontractor from

voluntarily entering into a PLA or other |abor agreenent. He
related that this bill is about fairness. |It’s about the three-
fourths of our state that operate non union. It ensures PLAs
are voluntary, that the state does not inpose its will on the

construction work force.

CHAIR OLSON stated that HB 185 would be held over for further
consi der ati on.

5:20: 37 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
5:20 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 31- April 6, 2009



